

Local Recovery Plan

SHIRE OF JERRAMUNGUP

Local Recovery Plan Page 1 of 20

LOCAL RECOVERY PLAN

The Shire of Jerramungup Local Recovery Plan has been prepared by the Shire of Jerramungup Emergency Management Committee to address Council's legislative responsibility under Section 36 and Section 41 of the Emergency Management Act 2005 and the Emergency Management Regulations 2006. The Recovery Plan sits directly under the Shire of Jerramungup Local Emergency Management Arrangements (LEMA).

Chairperson	Date	
Jerramungup LEMC		
Endorsed by Council		
Shire President	Date	
The Jerramungup Shire Council endorsed the Shire of	of Jerramungun Local Recovery Plan at the A	nril Ordinarı
Council Meeting held on	The second secon	, 3. 4 (4)
Council Motion No#		

Local Recovery Plan Page 2 of 20

TABLE OF CONTENTS

LOCAL RECOVERY PLAN	2
TABLE OF CONTENTS	3
DISTRIBUTION LIST	4
AMENDMENT RECORD	5
INTRODUCTION	6
Authority	6
Purpose	6
Objectives	6
Scope	6
RELATED DOCUMENTS AND ARRANGEMENTS	6
Agreements, Understandings and Commitments	6
RESOURCES	7
Financial Arrangements	7
ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES	8
Local Recovery Coordinator	8
The Local Recovery Coordination Group	10
Local Recovery Coordination Group Subcommittees	11
Communication Plan	12
ATTACHMENTS	13
Attachment 1: Recovery Resource and Contact Listing	13
Attachment 2: Local Recovery Coordinator Action Checklist	13
Prior to an Emergency	13
Within 48 hours	13
Within 1 week	14
Within 1 to 12 months (or longer-term recovery)	14
Attachment 3: Local Recovery Coordination Group Action Checklist	15
Within 1 week	15
Within 1 month	15
Within 12 months (or longer-term recovery)	
Attachment 4: At risk groups table	

DISTRIBUTION LIST

Organisation	No Copies
Shire of Jerramungup	3
Community Resource Centre – Jerramungup	1
Community Resource Centre – Bremer Bay	1
WA Police – Jerramungup	1
St John Ambulance WA – Jerramungup	1
Volunteer Fire & Emergency Services – Jerramungup	1
Volunteer Fire & Emergency Services – Bremer Bay	1
Volunteer Marine Rescue – Bremer Bay	1
Department of Primary Industries and Regional Development	1
WACHS Great Southern – Eastern Great Southern DON-HSM– Jerramungup	1
WACHS Great Southern – Eastern Great Southern DON-HSM – Bremer Bay	1
Department of Communities	1

Local Recovery Plan Page **4** of **20**

AMENDMENT RECORD

No.	Date	Amendment Details	Ву
1		Complete re-write of 2004 Arrangements	LEMC
2	10/12/2024	Complete re-write of Recovery Plan to align with SEMC template	LEMC

Local Recovery Plan Page **5** of **20**

INTRODUCTION

Authority

The Local Recovery Plan has been prepared in accordance with section 41(4) of the *Emergency Management Act 2005* (EM Act) and forms a part of the Local Emergency Management Arrangements for the Shire of Jerramungup. This plan has been endorsed by the Shire of Jerramungup Local Emergency Management Committee and has been tabled for information and comment with the Great Southern District Emergency Management Committee. This plan has been approved by the Shire of Jerramungup.

Purpose

The purpose of the Local Recovery Plan is to describe the arrangements for effectively managing recovery at a local level, including accountability and responsibility.

Objectives

The objectives of the plan are to:

- Describe the roles, responsibilities, available resources and procedures for the management of recovery from emergencies for the Shire of Jerramungup.
- Establish a basis for the coordination of recovery activities at the local level.
- Promote effective liaison between all Hazard Management Agencies (HMA), emergency services and supporting agencies, which may become involved in recovery.
- Provide a framework for recovery operations.

Scope

The scope of this recovery plan is limited to the boundaries of the Shire of Jerramungup and forms a part of its Local Emergency Management Arrangements. It details the local recovery arrangements for the community.

RELATED DOCUMENTS AND ARRANGEMENTS

The following documents are related to this plan:

- Emergency Management Act 2005
- State Hazard Plans (SEMC)
- State Support Plan Emergency Relief and Support (SEMC)
- State Support Plan Emergency Public Information (SEMC)
- State Support Plan Animal Welfare in Emergencies (SEMC)
- Shire of Jerramungup Local Emergency Management Arrangements (SoJ)
- Local Emergency Relief and Support Plan- Shire of Jerramungup (DoC)
- Shire of Jerramungup Business Continuity Plan (SoJ)

Agreements, Understandings and Commitments

The following agreements (Memorandums of Understanding) are in place between Shire of Jerramungup and other local governments, organisations or industries in relation to the provision of additional resources in recovery.

NIL

Local Recovery Plan Page **6** of **20**

RESOURCES

The resources available and contact details for recovery have been identified and are included in **Attachment**1. Shire of Jerramungup Resource Directory

The following table identifies suitable Local Recovery Coordination Centres in the local government area:

Centre name	Address	Capacity and available resources	Contacts
Shire of Jerramungup	8 Vasey Street,	Fully equipped admin	CEO Shire of
Administration Office	Jerramungup WA 6337	office (A3/A4	Jerramungup,
		printers/scanners,	P: 9835 1022
		landline phones, WiFi,	M: 0499 351 033
		offices and meeting	
		rooms, staff	DCEO Shire of
		male/female toilets and	Jerramungup,
		kitchen)	P: 9835 1022
			M: 0429 351 025
Bremer Bay Volunteer	Lot 500 John Street,	Admin offices/	VFES Captain
Fire and Emergency	Bremer Bay WA 6338	emergency services	Mick Batchelor
Services (VFES) building		facilities	M: 0427 284 024
		(A3/A4	
		printers/scanners,	CEO Shire of
		landline phones, WiFi,	Jerramungup,
		office and meeting	P: 9835 1022
		room, male/female toilet	M: 0499 351 033
		and showers, kitchenette	

Table 1: Local Recovery Coordination Centres

Financial Arrangements

The primary responsibility for safeguarding and restoring public and private assets affected by an emergency rests with the asset owner, who needs to understand the level of risk associated with their asset and have appropriate mitigation strategies in place.

The Shire of Jerramungup has arrangements in place to insure its assets and will further utilise the following financial arrangements for recovery where required:

- Authorising emergency purchases in line with the *Shire of Jerramungup Procurement of Goods and Services Policy FP6*,
- Establishing a cash reserve for Community Recovery, where it is considered appropriate for the level of risk to the community,
- Use of s6.8(1) and s6.11(2) of the *Local Government Act 1995* with respect to expenditure of funds not included in the annual budget,
- Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 1996 regulation 18(a) provides exemption
 for council to make budget related decisions in emergencies without giving local public notice of
 changes to financial reserves, and
- Use of s6.20(2) of *Local Government Act 1995* enabling borrowing of funds, subject to one month's local public notice of the proposal and exercising of the power to borrow by absolute majority decision of council.

The Australian and Western Australian Government recognise that communities and individuals do not

Local Recovery Plan Page **7** of **20**

always have the resources to provide for their own recovery and have joint arrangements in place to provide financial assistance in certain circumstances.

If necessary, the following arrangements have been made to fund recovery activities:

- <u>Disaster Recovery Funding Arrangements Western Australia</u> (DRFAWA)
- Services Australia (Centrelink)
- Lord Mayor's Distress Relief Fund (LMDRF).

Individual Assistance

Any requests for relief aid over and above assistance available through defined State/Commonwealth government schemes should be referred to the LMDRF.

Public Fundraising Appeals

Any request to initiate a public fundraising appeal for victims of an emergency should be directed to the LMDRF. If the LMDRF Board agrees to the request, the Board will liaise directly with the affected local government(s) to establish the required guidelines. For further information regarding the LMDRF visit: http://www.appealswa.org.au

Volunteers and Donations

Where possible, all offers of, or requests for, volunteer assistance with recovery activities and spontaneous donations should be coordinated through the Local Recovery Coordination Group (LRCG) to avoid duplication of effort.

Non-Government Organisations (NGOs)

In some circumstances, non-government organisations provide assistance by way of emergency relief funds, shelter, accommodation or household supplies. Where possible, the LRCG should deal with all offers of, or requests for, assistance from NGOs to avoid duplication of effort and confusion. At the State Government level, coordination is undertaken by the State Recovery Coordinator or the State Recovery Coordination Group (SRCG), if established. The distribution of the donated goods shall be undertaken by the organisations concerned.

ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

The role and responsibilities of those involved in recovery are outlined below.

Local Recovery Coordinator

The Shire of Jerramungup Chief Executive Officer has been appointed as the Local Recovery Coordinator in accordance with the EM Act s. 41(4). The Shire of Jerramungup DCEO will act in the role when the primary appointee is unavailable when an emergency occurs.

The Local Recovery Coordinator is responsible for the development and implementation of the recovery arrangements for the local government.

Local Recovery Plan Page 8 of 20

The functions of the Local Recovery Coordinator are:

Pre-Event

- Prepare, maintain and test the Local Recovery Plan in conjunction with the local government for endorsement by the Council of the local government.
- Ensure community engagement in recovery arrangements and increase community involvement in recovery preparedness, awareness and resilience.
- Identify at-risk groups within the community such as youth, the aged, people with disabilities, Aboriginal people, culturally and linguistically diverse people.
- Consider potential membership of the LRCG prior to an event occurring.

During Event

- Consult with the Controlling Agency regarding attending appropriate response meetings such as: Incident Management Team, Incident Support Group (ISG) and Operational Area Support Group meetings.
- Ensure local government actively participates in ISG meetings and provides advice to the HMA and Supporting Organisations relating to the LEMA.
- Consider membership of the LRCG, during an emergency, that is event specific, based on the four recovery environments: social, built, economic and natural, or as required.
- Ensure the Controlling Agency with responsibility for the response to an emergency, starts recovery activities during that emergency.
- Consult with the Controlling Agency on completing the Impact Statement prior to transfer of responsibility for recovery to the affected local government(s).

Post-Event

- Provide advice to the Mayor/Shire President and Chief Executive Officer (CEO) on the need to convene the LRCG and provide advice to the LRCG, if established.
- Ensure the local government provides LRCG with Executive Officer and administrative support, such as meeting agenda, minutes, financial and administrative recordkeeping.
- Determine the required resources for effective recovery in consultation with the LRCG.
- Coordinate local level recovery activities for the event, according to the plans, strategies and policies determined by the LRCG.
- Monitor the progress of recovery and provide periodic reports to the LRCG and State Recovery Coordination Group, if established.
- Liaise with the State Recovery Coordinator on issues where State level support is required or where there are concerns with services from government agencies locally.
- Arrange for the conduct of an operational debriefing of all participating agencies and organisations as soon as possible after the arrangements have ended.
- Arrange an evaluation of the effectiveness of recovery activities, within 12 months of the emergency, to ensure lessons are captured and available for future managers.

Provide recovery evaluations to the State Recovery Coordinator and the State Emergency Management Committee (SEMC).

The Local Recovery Coordinator Action Checklist is found within attachment 2.

Local Recovery Plan Page 9 of 20

The Local Recovery Coordination Group

The Shire of Jerramungup Local Recovery Coordination Group is comprised of the following core membership:

Core Members

- Local Recovery Coordinator (Chief Executive officer, Shire of Jerramungup)
- President, Shire of Jerramungup
- Local Government Liaison Officer (Deputy Chief Executive Officer, Shire of Jerramungup)
- Manager of Development, Shire of Jerramungup
- Local Emergency Coordinator (OIC WA Police Jerramungup)
- Local Welfare Coordinator (Department of Communities)
- Controlling Agency
- District Emergency Management Advisor
- Local government networks, community members and community groups/associations/committees, such as: environmental groups, farming groups, faith groups, sporting clubs, Aboriginal groups, schools and chambers of commerce and industry.
- Department of Health (or Local Health Services Provider/Officer)

Potential Members

Event Specific Appropriate membership for the LRCG must be determined for the specific emergency event. The following agencies and organisations may have a role on the LRCG:

- Australian Red Cross
- Chamber of Commerce and Industry WA / Small Business Development Corporation
- Department of Biodiversity, Conservation and Attractions
- Department of Communities
- Department of Education (or Local School Representative)
- Department of Fire and Emergency Services (DFES)
- Department of Health (or Local Health Services Provider/Officer)
- Department of Local Government, Sport and Cultural Industries Department of Planning, Lands and Heritage
- Department of Primary Industries and Regional Development
- Department of Water and Environmental Regulation
- Essential Services Network Operators Reference Group representative
- Essential Services such as:
 - Alinta Gas
 - Telstra Corporation
 - Water Corporation
 - Western Power/Horizon Power.
- Insurance Council Australia
- Main Roads Western Australia
- Public Information Reference Group representative
- Volunteering WA
- Western Australia Police Force
- Western Australian Local Government Association.

Local Recovery Plan Page **10** of **20**

The role of the Local Recovery Coordination Group is to coordinate and support local management of the recovery processes within the community. The functions of the Local Recovery Coordination Group are:

- Assess the Impact Statement for recovery requirements based on the social, built, economic and natural wellbeing of the community with assistance of the Controlling Agency where appropriate.
- Monitor known or emerging impacts using existing incident reports e.g. Impact Statement, Incident Support Group/Operational Area Support Group/Rapid damage assessment reports, HAZMAT reports, etc.
- Report on likely costs and impacts of recovery activities and establish a system for recording all recovery expenditure.
- Confirm whether the event has been declared an eligible natural disaster under the Disaster Recovery Funding Arrangements Western Australia (DRFAWA) and, if so, what assistance measures are available.
- Understand the State and Commonwealth relief programs such as, DRFAWA, Centrelink and the Lord Mayor's Distress Relief Fund if activated.
- Establish subcommittees that consider the four recovery environments social, built, economic and natural, or as required.
- Prepare a Communications Plan where appropriate.
- Depending on the extent of damage, develop an event specific Local Operational Recovery Plan
 which allows full community participation and access, as well as: taking account of the local
 government's long term planning and goals assessing which recovery functions are still required,
 timeframes and responsibilities for completing them.
- Consider the needs of youth, the aged, people with disabilities, Aboriginal people, isolated groups or individuals and culturally and linguistically diverse people.
- Oversee projects that support the social, built, economic and natural environments of recovery to ensure that they are community-led and targeted.
- Provide advice to the State and local government to ensure that recovery programs and services meet the needs of the community.
- Negotiate most effective use of State and Commonwealth agencies' resources.
- Monitor the progress of recovery and request periodic reports from recovery agencies.
- Provide recovery public information, information exchange and resource acquisition.
- Coordinate offers of assistance, including volunteers, services and donated money.
- Coordinate a multi agency approach to community recovery by providing a central point of communication and coordination for recovery services and projects.
- Make appropriate recommendations, based on lessons learnt, to the Local Emergency Management Committee to improve the community's recovery preparedness.
- Ensure the local government's existing Local Recovery Plan is reviewed and amended after an event in which the Local Recovery Plan was implemented.

The Local Recovery Coordination Group Action Checklist is found within attachment 3.

Local Recovery Coordination Group Subcommittees

Where required, it may be appropriate to consider establishing one or more subcommittees to assist the Local Recovery Coordinator and Coordination Group by addressing specific components of the recovery process.

Consideration will be given to establishing subcommittees across the four recovery environments (social, built, economic and natural), depending on the nature and extent of the recovery:

- Social Subcommittee
- Built Subcommittee

Local Recovery Plan Page 11 of 20

- Economic Subcommittee
- Natural Subcommittee.

Communication Plan

Any official communication shall be undertaken in line with the *Shire of Jerramungup Communication and Social Media Policy CP6*.

Key groups who need to receive recovery information may vary from case to case and will need to be reviewed at every event. Some of the main groups that might need to be addressed, the methods available and potential locations where information can be provided are detailed below:

WHO needs information?	WHAT communication methods and how they will be used?	WHERE will the information be provided?
Directly affected/impacted	In person or via correspondence:	Mobile devices
residents (including farmers,	TIM SMS system	Post Offices
small businesses, Point	Letter drops	Public meeting venues
Henry residents, townsite	Targeted public meetings	Public notice boards
residents)	Public notices/Media releases	One-stop-shop locations
	Social media posts	Online
	Community Newsletter	Local broadcasts
		Media (print, TV, radio)
At risk groups*	In person or via correspondence:	Mobile devices
	TIM SMS system	Post Offices
	Letter drops	Public meeting venues
	Targeted public meetings	Public notice boards
	Public notices/Media releases	One-stop-shop locations
*Defined in Attachment 4	Social media posts	Online
	Community Newsletter	Local broadcasts
		Media (print, TV, radio)
Bushfire Brigades	In person or via correspondence:	Brigade meetings
	WhatsApp Chats	LEMC/ BFAC meetings
	Targeted meetings	BFB WhatsApp chats
		Brigade leader
Shire of Jerramungup	In person or via correspondence:	Council meetings
Councillors	WhatsApp Chats	Online
	Targeted meetings	Councillor's WhatsApp chat
	Emails	
Shire of Jerramungup Staff	In person or via correspondence:	Staff meetings
	Targeted meetings	Staff emails
	Emails	
General public	In person or via correspondence:	Online
	Public notices/Media releases	Media (print, TV, radio)
	Social media posts	Public Notice Boards
	Community Newsletter	Local broadcasts

Table 2: Communication Plan

Local Recovery Plan Page 12 of 20

ATTACHMENTS

Attachment 1: Recovery Resource and Contact Listing

Please refer to the Shire of Jerramungup Local Resources Directory

Attachment 2: Local Recovery Coordinator Action Checklist

Please note this checklist is a guide and is not exhaustive. Timeframes are approximate.

Pr	ior to an Emergency
	Promote community awareness and engagement in recovery planning including involvement in development of Local Recovery Plan.
	Prepare, maintain and test Local Recovery Plan in conjunction with local government for endorsement by the Council.
	Ensure the completed Local Recovery Plan clarifies any recovery and operational agreements made between local governments (i.e. Memorandums of Understanding, loan staff, equipment sharing); roles and responsibilities; and records of all recovery expenditure.
	Identify at-risk groups such as youth, the aged, people with disabilities, Aboriginal people, culturally and linguistically diverse people, and isolated and transient people.
	Consider potential membership of the Local Recovery Coordination Group (LRCG) prior to an event occurring based on the social, built, economic and natural environments, or as required.
Wi	thin 48 hours
	Contact and alert key local contacts.
	Liaise with Controlling Agency and participate (or nominate a suitable local government representative i.e. Local Recovery Coordinator, executive staff or CEO) in the incident management arrangements, including the Incident Support Group and Operations Area Support Group where appropriate.
	Where more than one local government is affected, a coordinated approach should be facilitated by the Local Recovery Coordinators and supported by the State Recovery Coordinator, as required.
	Ensure an understanding of known or emerging impacts from the Impact Statement provided by the Controlling Agency.
	Consult the Department of Primary Industries and Regional Development on specific arrangements to manage the welfare of wildlife, livestock and companion animals.
	Ensure Controlling Agency starts recovery activities during the response to that emergency.
	Provide advice to the Mayor/Shire President and CEO on the requirement to convene the LRCG and provide advice to the LRCG if convened.
	During an event, consider membership of the LRCG that is event specific, based on the social, built, economic and natural environments, or as required.
	Consider support required such as resources to maintain records, including a record/log of events, actions and decisions.
	Ensure the local government provides LRCG with an Executive Officer and administrative support, such as meeting agenda, minutes, financial and administrative recordkeeping (contact DFES State Recovery for advice or for possible State Recovery Cadre support).

Local Recovery Plan Page **13** of **20**

	Controlling Agency, State government agencies and other recovery agencies.
	Brief media on the recovery program throughout the recovery process, ensuring accurate and consistent messaging (use the local government's media arrangements, or seek advice or support from DFES State Recovery).
	Develop and implement an event specific Communication Plan, including public information, appointment of a spokesperson and the local government's internal communication processes.
Wi	thin 1 week
	Consider fatigue management for self and recovery staff throughout all recovery (contact DFES State Recovery for advice or for possible State Recovery Cadre support).
	Consult with Controlling Agency on completing the Impact Statement before the transfer of responsibility for management of recovery to the local government.
	In conjunction with the Controlling Agency and other responsible agencies, assess the community's recovery requirements. Coordinate activities to rebuild, restore and rehabilitate the social, built, economic, natural and psychosocial wellbeing of the community.
	Liaise and meet with specific emergency management agencies involved with recovery operations to determine priority actions.
	Assess for the LRCG, the requirements for the restoration of services and facilities with assistance of the responsible agencies, where appropriate.
	Contact the Disaster Recovery Funding Arrangements Western Australia (DRFAWA) Officers to determine if the event is eligible under the DRFAWA. If so, ensure an understanding of what assistance measures are available and the process requirements for assistance.
	Understand eligible criteria and payment procedures of the Lord Mayor's Distress Relief Fund, if activated. Payments are coordinated through the local government to affected individuals.
	Report on likely costs and establish a system for recording all expenditure during recovery (includes logging expenditure, keeping receipts and providing timesheets for paid labour).
	Determine the acquisition and appropriate use of resources necessary for effective recovery.
	Consider establishing a call centre with prepared responses for frequently asked questions.
	Determine level of State involvement in conjunction with the local government and the State Recovery Coordinator.
	Liaise with the State Recovery Coordinator on issues where State level support is required or where there are concerns with services from government agencies locally.
	Ensure recovery activities are consistent with the National Principles for Disaster Recovery.
Wi	thin 1 to 12 months (or longer-term recovery)
	Monitor the progress of recovery and provide periodic reports throughout the recovery effort to the LRCG and State Recovery Coordination Group, if established.
	Ensure recovery projects that support the social, built, economic and natural recovery environments are community-led and targeted to best support affected communities

Local Recovery Plan Page **14** of **20**

	Arrange for an operational debriefing of all participating agencies and organisations as soon as possible after the arrangements have ended.
	Arrange for an evaluation of the effectiveness of recovery within 12 months of the emergency to make sure lessons are captured and available for future managers.
	Provide recovery evaluations to the State Recovery Coordinator to refer to the SEMC for review. Evaluations can involve community and stakeholder surveys, interviews, workshops, and assessment of key project outcomes.
	Social and personal support services are likely to be required in the longer term and the need for a considerable period of psychosocial support (often several years) should be planned for.
Plea	achment 3: Local Recovery Coordination Group Action Checklist ase note this checklist is a guide and is not exhaustive. Timeframes are approximate.
Wi	thin 1 week
	Ensure an understanding of known or emerging impacts from the Impact Statement provided by the Controlling Agency.
	Determine priority recovery actions from Impact Statement and consult with specific agencies involved with recovery operations.
	District Emergency Management Advisor(s) to be included on Local Recovery Coordination Group to provide recovery advice and support to the Group throughout recovery, as required.
	Assess recovery requirements and coordinate activities to rebuild and restore the social, built, economic, natural and psychosocial wellbeing of the affected community.
	Determine need to establish subcommittees based on the four recovery environments: social, built, economic and natural, as required. Determine functions and membership as needed.
	Report likely costs and establish a system for recording all expenditure during recovery (includes logging expenditure, keeping receipts and providing timesheets for paid labour).
	Determine the acquisition and appropriate use of resources necessary for effective recovery.
	Consider recovery information and arrangements for at-risk groups and individuals such as youth, the aged, people with disabilities, Aboriginal people, culturally and linguistically diverse people; and isolated and transient people.
	Brief media on the recovery program throughout recovery process, ensuring accurate and consistent messaging (use the local government's media arrangements, or seek advice and support from DFES State Recovery).
	Develop and implement an event specific Communication Plan, including public information, appointment of a spokesperson and the local government's internal communication processes.
	Ensure recovery activities are consistent with the National Principles for Disaster Recovery.
Wi	thin 1 month
	Consider fatigue management for self and recovery staff throughout all recovery (contact DFES State Recovery for advice or for possible State Recovery Cadre support).

Local Recovery Plan Page **15** of **20**

1		Confirm if the event has been proclaimed an eligible natural disaster event under the Disaster Recovery Funding Arrangements Western Australia and if so ensure an understanding of what assistance measures are available and the process requirements for assistance.
		Consider establishing a call centre with prepared responses for frequently asked questions.
		Develop an Operational Recovery Plan which determines the recovery objectives and requirements, governance arrangements, resources and priorities.
		Establish a 'one-stop shop' recovery centre to provide the affected community with access to recovery services, information and assistance.
		Coordinate all offers of assistance from non-government organisations, volunteers, material aid, appeals and donated money to avoid duplication of effort.
		Understand eligible criteria and payment procedures of the Lord Mayor's Distress Relief Fund, if activated. Payments are coordinated through the local government to affected individuals.
1		Activate outreach program to meet immediate needs and determine ongoing needs. Consider the need for specialist counselling, material aid, accommodation and financial assistance (liaise with the Department of Communities).
		Manage restoration of essential infrastructure.
		Liaise with the State Recovery Coordinator on issues where State level support is required or where there are concerns with services from government agencies locally.
ı		Monitor the progress of recovery and receive periodic reports from recovery agencies.
1	۷i	thin 12 months (or longer-term recovery)
ļ		Social and personal support services are likely to be required in the longer term and the need for a considerable period of psychosocial support (often several years) should be planned for.
		Ensure recovery projects that support the social, built, economic and natural recovery environments are community-led and targeted to best support affected communities.
		Implement transitioning to mainstream services.

Local Recovery Plan Page **16** of **20**

Attachment 4: At risk groups table

Locality	Group	Address	Contact	Requirement	Independent evacuation plan (y/n)
Boxwood Hill	Nowanup Bush Campus	284 Normans Rd, Gairdner WA	Donna O'Brian Ranger Coordinator	Usually 8 people on site. Occasionally camps/school groups/community group, up to 40 people on site.	In development
Bremer Bay	Bremer Bay Primary School Principal – Janice Fox	Garnett Rd, Bremer Bay WA 6338	Office: Ph: 08 9837 4010	11 x Staff / 36 x Students Grades K-6, Supervision, Working with Children permit, access to amenities Need to evacuate to a secure/fenced area	Y
	Bremer Bay Aged Care Units	Roderick St, Bremer Bay WA 6338	Advanced Housing (Albany) Ph: 9845 9697	Currently units 5 & 6 occupied. Units 1-4 unoccupied due to repairs after structure fire. Limited mobility, access to amenities, comfort consideration, medication dependent.	No. Under the RTA, it is not standard practice in property management to provide these for single storey dwellings- as advised by John McKeon, Advanced Housing.
	Bremer Bay Independent Living Units	Yandil Street Bremer Bay WA 6338	Advanced Housing (Albany) Ph: 9845 9697	5 Independent Living units, all occupied	No. Under the RTA, it is not standard practice in property management to provide these for single storey dwellings- as advised by

Local Recovery Plan Page **17** of **20**

				John McKeon, Advanced Housing.
Bremer Bay Health Centre	John St, Bremer Bay WA 6338	Office: Ph: 08 9837 4026	2 WACHS staff 3 GP staff (3- days/week) + visiting services. Scheduled & emergency patients	Υ
			Limited Mobility, medication/care dependent, require additional comfort consideration and supervision	
Bremer Bay Child Care	7 Mary St, Bremer Bay WA 6338		Supervision, Working with Children permit, access to amenities Note: Bremer Bay CRC have access to Child Care building	Closed until further notice. Shire expects the facility to reopen in February 2025, hence retaining information.
Bremer Bay Beaches Resort and Caravan Park	Wellstead Road, Bremer Bay WA 6338	PH: 9837 4290	109 short stay sites, 58 camping site Highest reported visitors number 4926 (Easter 2022)	
Bremer Bay Caravan Park	Bremer Bay Road, Bremer Bay WA 6338	PH: 9837 4018	12 long stay sites, 141 short stay sites, 155 camping sites Highest reported visitors number 8278 (Easter 2022)	
Tozer's Bush Camp	Occumup Road Bremer Bay WA 6338	M: 0428 971 015	Nature Based Park Camp host resides on site 48 short stay sites Highest reported visitors number 300 (Christmas, NYE 2022)	

Local Recovery Plan Page **18** of **20**

	Miller's Point	Miller's Point Road Bremer Bay WA	M: 0438 977 545	Basic campsite with camp host on premises until May 2025 Approx 15 camp sites and 4 shacks	N
Gairdner	Gairdner Primary School Principal – Sean Ward	Lot 1749 Gairdner Sth Rd Gairdner WA 6337	Office: Ph: 08 9836 0400	3 x Staff / 0 x Students Grades K-6, Supervision, Working with Children permit, access to amenities	Y
Jerramun gup	Jerramungup District High School (DHS) Principal – Haidee Brooks	2 Lancaster Rd, Jerramungup WA 6337	Office: Ph: 08 9835 1233	· ·	Y
	Jerramungup Aged Care Units	Derrick Street, Jerramungup WA 6337	Advanced Housing (Albany) Ph: 9845 9697	6 Independent Living units, all occupied	N
	Jerramungup Child Care Coordinator – Nadine Wise	Spitfire Avenue, Jerramungup WA 6337	Centre:	4 x Staff / Up to 23 x Children Supervision, Working with Children permit, access to amenities	
	Jerramungup Health Centre	Kokoda Rd, Jerramungup WA 63347	Office: Ph: 08 9835 1004	2 WACHS staff 3 GP staff (2 days / week) + visiting services. Scheduled & emergency patients	Y
				Limited Mobility, medication/care dependent, require additional comfort consideration and supervision	

Local Recovery Plan Page **19** of **20**

Jerramungup	Moorshead Rd,	PH: 9835 1174	26 short stay sites, 5	
Caravan Park	Jerramungup WA 6337		camp sites	

Local Recovery Plan Page **20** of **20**